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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF UTAH

CRISTIAN NARANJO,

MEMORANDUM DECISION AND
Plaintiff, ORDER DENYING MOTION TO

V. DISMISS COUNT Il OF PLAINTIFF'S

COMPLAINT

THE CHERRINGTON FIRM, LLG and

LACEY CHERRINGTON,

Case N02:17cv-00645INP

Defendants.

District Judge Jill N. Parrish

l. BACKGROUND

Plaintiff Cristian Naranjo filed suit against the Cherrington Firm, LLC amdely
Cherrington (collectively, “Cherrington”). Cherrington is engaged in thenbss of debt
collection. Cherringtorallegedlyattempted to and did colletbm Naranjo amounts in excess of
what Naranjo actually owed. Narargtaims that Cherrington’s delbbllection practices violated
(1) the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA”), and (2) the UtahsQmer Sales
Protection Act (“UCSPA”). Cherrington has moved to dismiss Naratj&€SPA claim on the
grounds that debt collection is governed by a more specific statute, the FDR&Eourt finds
this argument meritless and therefore denies the motion.

I DISCUSSION

Cherrington contends th&daranjo’'s UCSPA claim is barred because a more specific
federal law, the FDCPA, governs debt collecti@ierringtonstates “Utah law is clear that a
claim under the UCSPA is barred when the conduct at issue is ‘governétebynoore specific

law.” But Cherrington misunderstands Utah law.
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Under Utah law, courts must construe legislative enactments to “give effece to th
legislature’s underlying intentMillett v. Clark Clinic Corp., 609 P.2d 934936 (Utah 1980).

The “primary goal when construing statutes is to evince ‘the true iateshtpurpose of the
Legislature[as expressed through] the plain language of the Akfall v. Utah Sate Dept. of
Corrections, 24 P.3d 958, 963 (Utah 2001) (quotilapsen v. Intermountain Health Care, Inc.,
679 P.2d 903, 906 (Utah 1984Qs such, when two statutory provisions conflict, the provision
that is more specific in its application governs over the more general provdioRugh v.
Draper City, 114 P.3d 546, 549 (Utah 2005).

In Carlie v. Morgan, 922 P.2d 1, 6 (Utah 1996), the Utah Supreme Court held that the
UCSPA didnot provide a remedyecause the Utah Fit Premises Agtoke directly to the
alleged violations whereas the UCSPA did not. Tenants claimed that the ownerrof thei
apartment building and the building manager violated the UCSPA because the @apartme
building was closed due to health code violatidms.at 2. Although the UCSPA *“focuses
generally on deceptive and unconscionable sales practices,” the Fit Premisgsofittes
specific remedies to residential tenants whose rental units become uninkatibd violations
of health and safety standard&d’ at 6. Thus, the couhteld that plaintiff could not rely on the
UCSPA because “[s]pecific statsteontrol over more general onekd’ (citing Sate v. Lowder,

889 P.2d 412, 414 (Utah 1994)).

! Justice Howe wrote a concurrence in which he explained that he believed th&SPa did
not apply because of a comment made by the drafters of the Uniformr@@nSales Practices
Act, the draft legislatiorafter which the UCSPA was modele@arlie, 922P.2d at 7 (Howgel.,
concurring). The drafters of the Uniform Act stated, “On the assumptionating transactions
frequently are, and should be, regulated by specialized legislation, they ardeelxaltogether.”
Id. (quoting Wade v. Jobe, 818 P.2d 1006, 1014 (Utah 1991)According to Justice Howe,
“comments by the drafters of uniform acts are not written into the statute wihbnadopts a
version of a uniform act but are nevertheless considered relevant when seekilagiviegis
intent.” Id.



In a later caseBerneike v. CitiMortgage, Inc., 708 F.3d 1141, 1150 (10th Cir. 2013), the
Tenth CircuitappliedCarlie to hold that the UCSPA did not provideremedy because other
state law (Jtah’s Mortgage Lending and Servicing Aat)ore specifically regulated the subject
matter of the case, mortgage loan servicifttg plaintiff had also brought a claim under the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures Act (“RESPA”), a federal consumer protectiate dtat
regulated mortgage servicinggl. at 1143.But the court did not rely on the existencenabre
specific federalaw to hold that the UCSPA did not provide a remefige id. at 1150.The
UCSPAanalysisfocused solely ostatelaw. Id.

In Thomas v. Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., No. 2:13cv-686, 2014 WL 657394, at *3 (D. Utah
Feb. 20, 2014), the couneld that the UCSPA did not provide a remedy because the wrongful
conduct alleged by the plaintiff was goverrigda more specifitederal statute, the Fair Credit
Reporting Act.The court first looked to Utah Codel8-1122(1)(a), which provides that the
UCSPA “does not apply to.. an act or practiceequired or specifically permitted by or under
federal law,or by or under state law.The court then citedCarlie and Breneike for the
proposition that a plaintiff cannot bringaims under the UCSPA when those claims “are
governed by any other stadefederal law.” Thomas, 2014 WL 657394, at *3 (emphasis added).

The holding inThomas is wrong for two reasongsirst, neitherBerneike nor Carlie
stands forthe proposition that UCSPA does not provide a remedy when the alleged acts are
governed by more speciffederal law. Both cases looked to more spec#iate law to conclude
that the UCSPA did not provide a remedy. In factBreneike, the court ignored the fact that
there was more specific federal l@RESPA, whichregulaed the alleged wrongful conduct
Second, §13-1122(1)(a) speaks only to situatiomghere state or federal law “require[s] or

specifically permit[s]” the alleged wrongful condulttdoes not speak to a situation where both



federal and state laprohibit certain conduct.Moreover, the holdings iarlie andBreneike
were not based onB3-11-22(1)(a),contrary to what th&homas court seems to suggestither
case mentions §3-1122(1)(a).

In the most recent case cited by Cherringiest v. C.J. Pressman Co., No. 2:16¢v-75,
2017 WL 4621611, at *7 (D. Utah Oct. 13, 201fhg courtheld that plaintiffs failed to allege a
UCSPA claim because the alleged wrongful conduct fell squarely withirether& Wiretap Act
and the Utah Interception of Communication Aftollectively defined in the case as the
“Wiretap Acts”). The court was notlear as to whether it would have reached the same
conclusionf it relied solely on the Federal Wiretap Act

This conduct falls squarely withithe Wiretap Acts Thus, because the more

specific Wiretap Actscontrol over the more general UCSPA, [plairgiffclaim

for violation of the UCSPA is DISMISSED.
Id. (footnotes omitted). ThusWest provides little guidance to the case at handwhich
Cherringtorrelies solely orfederal lawo argue that a UCSPA claim is barred

Here, Naranjo’s UCSPA claim is not barred the FDCPA. BottCarlie and Bernelke
spoke to situations where UCSPA claims warproperdue to more specifistatelaw. The rule
enunciated irCarlie seeks to maintain consistency betwstatestatutes See Lowder, 889 P.2d
at 414.This gives effect to the Utah legislature’s underlying intéfitlett, 609 P.2d at 936-or
instance, if theUtah legislature has spoken specifically to a topic, its decision on that topic
should not be undermined by a general legistagnactmentsuch as the UCSRPAut Carlie

does not stand for the proposition that UCSPA claamesbarredwhen there ismore specific

federallaw that is consistent witktate law Indeed,the Court is unaware of any Utah Supreme

% Cherrington even concedes this in its Reply: “Of course, if the conduct about which thifplaint
in Thomas complained was illegal, it could not, by definition be ‘an act or practice ezjoir
specifically permitted by or under federal law.™
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Court case in which a party has been denied a remedy under Utah law becauseraf
specifig but not conflictingfederal law.

Cherrington’s argument is based entirelytloa existence of federal law, the FDCPA. It
has not pointed to a state law that specifically regulatealtaged wrongful conduct, improper
debtcollection practices. While there is state law that imposes registration and bond
requirements on collection agencies, it does not regulatecdéttion practicesSee Utah Code
Ann. 812-141 et seq. If Cherrington is aware of state law that specifically regulates debt
collection, it is more than welcome to file a motion alerting the Court to such law.

Cherrington seems targuethat the Court shouldadopt a sweeping rule of statutory
construction wheeby plaintiffs are denied remedies under state law whenever there is a more
specific federal law. Admittedly, the court Thomas adopted such an approach. But that case
was based on an erroneous readinGafie, Bernelke, and 813-1122(1)(a). Such aapproach
would lead to sweeping preemptionlddah law whenever a federal law spoke more specifically
to the subject matter of a lawsuit. In the case at hand, this was neither theofritee Utah
legislature,see § 13-1122 (exemptions), nor Congresse 15 U.S.C. 81692n ([The FDCPA]
does not annul, alter, or affect, or exempt any person subject to the provisions of thagptarbc
from complying with the laws of any State with respect to debt collection @actgcept to the
extent those laws arnaconsistent with any provision of this subchapter, and then only to the
extent of the inconsistency.’Accordingly, the Court concludes that Naranjo’s UCSPA claim is

not barred by the FDCPA.

% Cherrington ignores a number of cases from this circuit in which courtsaiawed parties to
seek redress under both the UCSPA and the FD@&BAHeard v. Bonneville Billing and
Collections, Nos. 994092, 994100, 2000 WL 825721, at *1 (10th Cir. 2000) (“The distciotirt
granted summary judgment to [plaintiff] on her clatitmaf defendant] violated the [FDCPA] and
the [UCSPA] ...."); Gallegos v. LVNV Funding LLC, 169 F. Supp. 3d 1235, 1240 (D. Utah
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Moreover, 813-1122(1)(a) does not bar Naranjo’s UCSPA cla#s. noted above, this
section provides thatthe UCSPAdoes not applywhen state or federal law “require[s] or
specifically permit[s]” the alleged wrongful conduct. Here, Naranjo claimas @herrington
violated both federal and state laection 1311-22()(a) would apply only if Cherrington’s
actions were required or specifically permitted by federal or stateAagordingly, the Court
concludes that § 13-11-22(1)(a) does not bar Naranjo’s UCSPA claim.

In sum, Naranjo’s UCSPA is not barred by the rule enunciat&chihe nor §13-11-
22(1)(a). The UCSPA claim would be barred un@arlie only if therewere a more specific
state law that regulated the subject matter of this suit, debt colle@lmrrington has not
identified any such lawAnd §13-1122(1)(a) would apply only if the alleged wrongftdnduct
wererequired or specifically permitted by federal or state lavs. not.

[I. CONCLUSION AND ORDER

For the reasons set forth above, the Court DENIES Cherrington’s Motion to Dismiss
Countll of Plaintiff's Complaint (ECF No. 11). Naran®’'UCSPA claimis not barred by the

FDCPA.

Signed January 22, 2018

BY THE COURT

Cyie .ok

Jill N. Parrish
United States District Court Judge

2016) (“Plaintiff filed the present action alleging that Defendants violatefFIDEPA and] .. .
the [UCSPA] ...."); Midland Funding LLC v. Sotolongo, 325 P.3d 871, 875 (Utah Ct. App.
2014) (thirdparty plaintiff alleged “various violationsf the [FDCPA] and the [UCSPA}]
Brown v. Constantino, No. 2:09ev-357-DAK, at *1 (D. Utah Oct. 27, 2009).
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